

9th June 2014

MINUTES

Present:

Councillor Wanda King (Mayor), Councillor Pat Witherspoon (Deputy Mayor) and Councillors Joe Baker, Roger Bennett, Rebecca Blake, Michael Braley, Andrew Brazier, Natalie Brookes, Juliet Brunner, David Bush, Greg Chance, John Fisher, Andrew Fry, Carole Gandy, Bill Hartnett, Pattie Hill, Gay Hopkins, Alan Mason, Phil Mould, Jane Potter, Mark Shurmer, Rachael Smith, Yvonne Smith, Paul Swansborough, Debbie Taylor, David Thain and John Witherspoon

Also Present:

Mr Ken Williams, Chair of the Town Centre Partnership, Reverend Paul Lawlor, Vicar of St. Stephens Church and Ellen Cockran and Tom Willetts (Mayors Cadets)

Officers:

J Bayley, K Dicks, C Felton, S Hanley, A Harley, S Jones, D Parker-Jones, J Smyth, I Westmore and A Williams

Democratic Services Officer:

Ivor Westmore

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Brandon Clayton.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MAYOR'S OPENING REMARKS

a) General Remarks

The Mayor commented that she would take away so many happy memories from an unforgettable year. She had attended numerous functions and events and met so many lovely people and it was this which had made the year so special for her.

Chair	

The Mayor gave her thanks to her daughter and consort, Lisa, to the Mayor's Army Cadets who had supported her throughout the year and special thanks also to Councillor Joe Baker for the help he had given her over the previous two years. The Mayor also thanked her Deputy Mayor, Councillor Pat Witherspoon, for standing in at engagements that she was unable to attend.

b) Award for Outstanding Service to the Community

The Mayor's Annual Award for outstanding contribution to the community which had been instituted in 2010 was awarded to Mr Ron and Mrs Elaine Daykin in recognition of the outstanding work they carried out for Special Olympics Redditch

c) <u>Mayoral Charities</u>

The Mayor informed the Council that a sum of £4,315.69 had been raised throughout the year for her charities, Myeloma UK, The Primrose Hospice and Special Olympics Redditch and cheques for £1438.56 respectively were either presented to, or were to be forwarded to, these organisations.

4. ELECTION OF MAYOR FOR 2014/15

Councillor Pat Witherspoon was elected Mayor of the Borough for the forthcoming year, following which she made the statutory declaration of Acceptance of Office and was then invested with the Chain of Office by the outgoing Mayor, Councillor Wanda King. Councillor Witherspoon thanked the outgoing Mayor and, on behalf of the Council, expressed gratitude for the work she had carried out as an ambassador for the town.

Councillor Witherspoon informed the Council that she was privileged to be taking on the role of Mayor , particularly in such a special year for the Borough. 2014 marked the fiftieth anniversary of the New Town and the country was also celebrating and commemorating the sacrifices made in two World Wars. She undertook to do her best to serve the community throughout the coming year and went on to thank her follow Councillors for their work for the people of Redditch. The Mayor announced that her charities for the year would be Redditch Mental Health Action Group and Redditch Friends Together, the latter being a support group for those with Dementia and Alzheimer's Disease.

The Mayor was pleased to be able to announce that the Scouts would be supporting her during her mayoral year and presented cadet badges to Ellen Cockran and Tom Willetts of Redditch Scouts

The new mayor invited Mr Ken Williams of Redditch Town Centre Partnership to address the Council about the Redditch Town Centre Partnership Pledge. The Partnership was marking the fiftieth anniversary of the designation of the New Town, a master-plan designed to develop Redditch as a place of regional significance. Mr Williams was pleased to report that the Town Centre had a great Partnership Body but the Partnership recognised that no one person, organisation or group could provide all the answers. In April the Partnership had launched a new charter for the town with pledges to carry the town through the next fifty years and a representation of these pledges was presented to the Council.

The new Mayor announced that she had asked the Reverend Paul Lawlor of St. Stephens Church to be her Chaplain for the coming year. The Reverend Lawlor was invited to address the Council and urged those present to work together to build the best community Redditch could be.

RESOLVED that

- 1) Councillor Pat Witherspoon be, and hereby is, elected Mayor of the Borough of Redditch to serve until the next Annual Meeting of the Council; and
- 2) the Council formally express, and record, its gratitude to Councillor Wanda King for her excellent service to the town over the last 12 months as Mayor.

5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR

Councillor Pattie Hill was elected Deputy Mayor of the Borough of Redditch for the forthcoming year, following which she made the statutory declaration of Acceptance of Office and was then invested with the Deputy Mayor's Badge of Office by the Mayor, Councillor Pat Witherspoon.

RESOLVED that

Councillor Pattie Hill be, and hereby is, appointed Deputy Mayor of the Borough of Redditch to serve until the next Annual Meeting of the Council.

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS

a) Mayor

The Mayor had no further announcements.

b) <u>Leader</u>

The Leader's announcements were as follows:

i) <u>Bandstand Events</u>

The Leader reported that the summer's Bandstand events had commenced in May with the next taking place on Saturday 14th June with the theme of Brass Bands / Children's Day. Further events would be taking place until September.

ii) Members' Allowances

The Leader reported that he had received a letter from Brandon Lewis MP in response to the Council's request, following the last meeting of the Council, that Members' Allowances be set nationally. Mr Lewis had stated that Members' Allowances should remain a local matter for local decision.

iii) Redditch Mental Health Action Group

The Leader reported that he had attended the first AGM of the Redditch Mental Health Action Group and paid tribute to those instrumental in establishing and organising this body.

iv) Cycle Tour Event

The Leader advised that the previous week had seen the latest running of the Cycle Tour Event which had been bigger and better than in previous years. Thanks were extended to the organisers of the event.

v) Greater Birmingham and Solihull LEP

The Leader reported that Andy Street, Chair of the GBSLEP, had addressed business leaders in Redditch the previous Friday and had given a very upbeat assessment of the LEP and its future prospects.

vi) North Worcestershire Police Fun Day

The Leader advised that, the previous day, he had attended the North Worcestershire Police Fun Day in Kidderminster at which the Council's own Community Safety and Hate Crime Teams had been present.

vii) Anniversary of D Day

The Leader reminded the Council that the 70th Anniversary of D Day had taken place just days beforehand and he expressed gratitude on behalf of those present to all who had been involved in this heroic venture.

c) Chief Executive

The Chief Executive had no announcements.

7. MINUTES

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 31st March 2014 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

8. RETURNING OFFICER'S REPORT

The report of the Returning Officer in respect of the recent elections was received by the Council. It was noted that one Councillor, Councillor David Small, had subsequently resigned his seat and a by-election would be held to fill the consequent vacancy in Church Hill Ward.

Members queried how much it would cost to organise a by-election in this Ward. The Returning Officer undertook to quantify this amount and report it to Members following the meeting.

RESOLVED that

the report be noted.

9. LEADER'S APPOINTMENTS

The Leader announced his appointments as set out in the detailed nominations paper tabled at the meeting.

RESOLVED that

the appointment by the Leader of the Deputy Leader, of Members to the Executive Committee and to the individual Portfolios as detailed in Appendix A attached to these Minutes be noted.

10. APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES, PANELS ETC. AND THEIR CHAIRS AND VICE-CHAIRS

The Council considered the lists of nominations to Committees, Sub-Committees and other bodies and, in addition, Terms of Reference for a newly created Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

RESOLVED that

- the terms of reference of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee be agreed as set out in Appendix 1 to the report submitted;
- 2) the Political balance of the Committees of the Council be agreed as set out in paragraph 3.7;
- 3) the arrangement where the seats on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are not allocated in accordance with the political balance requirements be continued;
- 4) the arrangement where the seats on the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel are not allocated in accordance with the political balance requirements be continued;
- 5) appointments by political group leaders to the places on each Committee etc., as set out at Appendix B, be noted;
- 6) the Council appoints non-aligned Councillors to places on Committees;
- 7) the Council appoints Chairs and Vice-Chairs to the Committees and other bodies as set out in Appendix 2 to the report submitted; and
- 8) appointments to Working Groups and other bodies listed in the appendix be agreed.

11. OUTSIDE BODIES

RESOLVED that

appointments by political group leaders to the places on each of the Outside Bodies as detailed in Appendix C attached to these Minutes be noted.

12. URGENT BUSINESS - RECORD OF DECISIONS

There were no urgent decisions to note.

13. URGENT BUSINESS - GENERAL

There were no additional items of urgent business.

	9 th June 2014_
The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm	
and closed at 7.53 pm	

MAYOR, in the Chair

Council